

May 12, 2022

Dear Property Owner:

Shannon & Wilson is working with the Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT&PF) and the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) to identify and sample private water supply wells near airports to determine if per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) are present and if so, determine if they have concentrations above health advisory levels.

The Ted Stevens Anchorage International Airport (ANC) Fire Department and other agencies have used aqueous film forming foam (AFFF), a standard firefighting agent that contains PFAS, during required training exercises and emergency events to extinguish hydrocarbon fires. PFAS are considered emerging contaminants and the health effects are not well known.

Shannon & Wilson is in the process of identifying drinking water wells around the ANC for future testing (see attached figure), due to AFFF having been used at the airport in the past. Out of an abundance of caution, ANC has requested Shannon & Wilson survey for water supply wells to determine if PFAS has migrated into surrounding drinking water wells.

The water supply well search for this project includes your property.

Please complete and return the enclosed survey at your earliest convenience.

For more information visit dot.alaska.gov/airportwater. We appreciate your patience as we work through this process. We look forward to receiving your completed survey.

Sincerely,

SHANNON & WILSON

Jessa Tibbetts Environmental Scientist Enc. Search Area Map, PFAS Information Pamphlet, Water Supply Well Survey, Return Envelope

Project No. 106189- S&W\_Survey Letter.docx





# Perfluoroalkyls - ToxFAQs™

### What are perfluoroalkyls?

Perfluoroalkyls are a group of man-made chemicals that are not found naturally in the environment. Some chemicals that are in this group include: perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA), perfluorooctane sulfonic acid (PFOS), perfluorononanoic acid (PFNA), perfluorohexane sulfonic acid (PFHxS), and perfluorodecanoic acid (PFDA).

The two perfluoroalkyls made in the largest amounts in the United States were PFOA and PFOS. Perfluoroalkyls were used to protect products like carpet and fabric, and as a coating for paper and cardboard packaging. They can also be found in some firefighting foams.

### Where are perfluoroalkyls found in the environment?

Perfluoroalkyls can be found in air, soil, and water as a result of manufacture and use. They do not break down in the environment very easily. Perfluoroalkyls can seep through the soil into groundwater.

### How can I be exposed to perfluoroalkyls?

You may be exposed to perfluoroalkyls in the air; in indoor dust, food, and water; and in some home products. However, the main sources of exposure to perfluoroalkyls, such as PFOA and PFOS, are usually from eating food and drinking water that are contaminated with these chemicals. Because exposure is widespread, blood tests can find PFOA, PFOS, PFNA, and PFHxS in most people. However, in general, human blood levels of these chemicals are going down as exposures in the environment goes down.

Babies born to mothers exposed to PFAS can be exposed during pregnancy and while breastfeeding. However, nursing mothers should continue to breastfeed. Based on current science, the benefits of breastfeeding appear to outweigh the risks for infants exposed to PFAS in breast milk. To weigh the risks and benefits of breastfeeding, mothers should contact their doctors. Children can be exposed to perfluoroalkyls in carpet since they are closer to the ground and play on the floor. Exposure to perfluoroalkyls is widespread. The main sources in the environment is contaminated food and water.

Workers in facilities that make or use perfluoroalkyls can be exposed to higher amounts of these chemicals and may have higher levels in their blood. Some communities near factories that made PFOA and PFOS were exposed to high levels of these substances in drinking water.

### How can perfluoroalkyls affect my health?

A large number of studies have examined possible relationships between levels of perfluoroalkyls in blood and harmful health effects in people. However, not all of these studies involved the same groups of people, the same type of exposure, or the same perfluoroalkyls, resulting in a variety of observed health outcomes. Research in humans suggests that high levels of certain perfluoroalkyls **may** lead to:

- increased cholesterol levels (PFOA, PFOS, PFNA, PFDA);
- changes in liver enzymes (PFOA, PFOS, PFHxS)
- decreased vaccine response in children (PFOA, PFOS, PFHxS, PFDA);
- increased risk of high blood pressure or pre-eclampsia in pregnant women (PFOA, PFOS);
- small decreases in infant birth weights (<20 grams (0.7 ounces) decrease in birth weight per 1 ng/mL increase in PFOA or PFOS in blood).</li>

Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry

Office of Innovation and Analytics, Toxicology Section





## Perfluoroalkyls

One way to learn about whether perfluoroalkyls will harm people is to do studies on lab animals. Most of these studies have tested doses of PFOA and PFOS that are higher than levels found in the environment. These animal studies have found that PFOA and PFOS can cause damage to the liver and the immune system. PFOA and PFOS have also caused birth defects, delayed development, and newborn deaths in lab animals.

Humans and animals react differently to perfluoroalkyls, and not all effects observed in animals may occur in humans. Scientists have ways to estimate how the exposure and effects in animals compare to what they would be in humans. What they learn from this process helps them decide how to protect people from chemical exposures.

### Can perfluoroalkyls cause cancer?

Studies do not clearly show whether perfluoroalkyls cause cancer in people. People exposed to high levels may have increased risk of kidney cancer or testicular cancer. However, these studies are not consistent and may not have looked at other factors like smoking.

Studies in animals have shown that PFOA and PFOS can cause cancer in the liver, testes, pancreas, and thyroid. However, some scientists believe that humans may not develop the same cancers as animals.

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has classified PFOA and PFOS as having suggestive evidence of carcinogenic potential in humans. The International Agency for Research on Cancer has classified PFOA as possibly carcinogenic (causing cancer) to humans, but it has not evaluated whether other perfluoroalkyls may also cause cancer. The Department of Health and Human Services has not yet evaluated whether PFOA and other perfluoroalkyls can cause cancer.

### Can I get a medical test to check for perfluoroalkyls?

A blood test can measure perfluoroalkyls in your blood, but this is not a test routinely done in a doctor's office. If you have perfluoroalkyls in your blood, you have been exposed to these chemicals and absorbed them into your body at some time. Most people have some level of perfluoroalkyls in their blood. The blood test can't predict if you will have health problems from exposure to perfluoroalkyls.

### How can I protect myself and my family from perfluoroalkyls?

If you do not know about perfluoroalkyls levels in your water, ask your local health department. Do not use consumer products that contain perfluoroalkyls. Drink or cook with bottled water or install activated carbon water filters if your tap or well water contains perfluoroalkyls.

### For more information:

Call **CDC-INFO** at 1-800-232-4636, or submit your question online at <u>https://wwwn.cdc.gov/dcs/ContactUs/Form</u>

Go to ATSDR's Toxicological Profile for perfluoroalkyls: https://wwwn.cdc.gov/TSP/ToxProfiles/ToxProfiles.aspx?id=1117&tid=237

Go to ATSDR's Toxic Substances Portal: https://wwwn.cdc.gov/TSP/index.aspx

Find & contact your ATSDR Regional Representative at <a href="http://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/DRO/dro\_org.html">http://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/DRO/dro\_org.html</a>



#### Water Supply Well Inventory Survey Form

Date:
Parcel:
Name (Owner):
Name (Occupant):
Physical Address:
Mailing Address:
Email Address (optional):
Contact Phone Number: (owner) (occupant)
Number of persons residing at this location:       Adults (18 and over)         Teenagers (13 to 17)         Children (12 and under)         Years at this residence:       Full-Time
1) From where do you obtain your drinking water?         a) Water Supply Utility       b) Well Water         c) Water Delivery       d) Other         2) If you have a water well, please answer the following questions:         a) Where is the well located on the property?         b) Is the well in use? Yes       No         c) If yes, please check all that apply regarding the usage of your well water:         Drinking       Cooking         Gardening       Pets         Other       Other         d) If no, is the well usable, unusable, or properly abandoned?         Usable       Unusable         Abandoned       Method         e) When was the well installed?       Do you have the well log?         f) What is the well diameter?       Do you water the well log?         h) What is the well type?       Dug Well       Driven         i) Do you have any treatment on your well (e.g. water softener)? Please describe.
<ul> <li>3) Sample Permission</li> <li>Does the Alaska Department of Transportation &amp; Public Facilities (DOT&amp;PF) have permission to sample your private water well? Yes No</li> </ul>